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November 6, 2003

	Reply to Attn of: 
	BJ2-03-297


To:

All Prospective Offerors

From:
Contracting Officer, JSC Information Management and Media Services (JIMMS)

Subject:
Request for Proposal  03JCS002, JIMMS Contract

The National Aeronautics and Space Administration (NASA), Lyndon B. Johnson Space Center (JSC), is hereby soliciting offers for the JSC Information Management & Media Services (JIMMS) contract.  This replaces the draft RFP issued on October 6, 2003, in its entirety.  

Contract Structure

This procurement is a total small business set aside.  The North American Industry Classification System (NAICS) code for this acquisition is 512191 with a size standard of $25M.  It will be an Indefinite Delivery Indefinite Quantity (IDIQ) Cost Plus Award Fee (CPAF) contract.  The maximum contract value is $175M including fee.  This value is for the 3-year basic period of performance and two 1-year options.  

Proposal Submission

Proposals submitted in response to this solicitation shall include the Offeror’s name and complete address, including street, city, county, state and zip code.  In addition, include telephone and fax numbers and an email address where the person responsible for the proposal can be contacted.

Offerors are required to have a Cage Code that matches the corporate address submitted with its proposal.  Offerors are directed to Section L, Provision L.7 entitled “Submission of Proposals”, and Provision L.11, entitled “Instruction to Offerors – Competitive Acquisition.” Offerors must submit proposals in accordance with the specific instructions in Section L. As stated in Section L.7, proposals are due no later than 11:00 a.m., Central time January 7, 2004, with the exception of L.13.IV, Volume II:  Past Performance Proposal and Past Performance Questionnaires are due no later than 11:00 a.m. local time, December 8, 2003.  (NOTE:  After 2:30 p.m., JSC Security cannot screen incoming packages until the following business day.)  
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In accordance with the proposal instructions in Section L, the proposals are to be submitted in hard copy and CD ROM.  In addition, Offerors are requested to provide a copy of their cost proposal to the cognizant Defense Contract Audit Agency (DCAA) office at the time proposals are submitted in order to expedite proposal evaluations.

Proposals that arrive after the prescribed time for receipt of proposals will be considered late and treated in accordance with FAR 52.215-1, “Instructions to Offerors-Competitive Acquisitions”.

Communications Regarding the Request for Proposal

Any questions or concerns that may arise should be referred to the Contracting Officer, Jessica C. Miller at the following address:

NASA Johnson Space Center

Attn: Jessica C. Miller

Mail Code SEB416N

2101 NASA Parkway

Houston, TX 77058

Phone number: 281-483-6792

Fax number: 281-483-1139

Email address:  Jessica.c.miller@nasa.gov
Questions Related to the RFP

Written questions from the draft RFP have been answered and are attached to this letter.  Any questions received as a result of the final RFP will be answered as an amendment.  All amendments, if any, will be posted on the NASA Acquisition Internet Service Website (NAIS) for all interested parties to review.

Changes to the RFP

It is the Offeror’s responsibility to monitor the NAIS website at the following address for any changes to the schedule or posting of amendments to this RFP:

http://prod.nais.nasa.gov/cgi-bin/eps/synopsis.cgi?acqid=106338
The Offerors are encouraged to ensure that they have submitted the required documentation and their company is listed on the on-line database for the following:

Central Contract Registry


http://www.ccr.com
EEO National Pre-Award Registry
http://www.dol-esa.gov/preaward
VETS 100




http://vets100.cudenver.edu
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This solicitation neither commits the Government to pay any cost incurred in the submission of the offer or in making necessary studies or designs for preparing the offer, nor the contract for services or supplies.  Any cost incurred in anticipation of a contract shall be at the Offeror’s own risk.

Original Signed by 

Jessica C. Miller

Contracting Officer

JIMMS Draft RFP 03JCS002

Questions and Answers

Question D1:  The DRFP has the past performance due on November 17, which is before the scheduled date of the final RFP.  Is that an error or a valid date?

Answer D1:   Volume II – Past Performance and Past Performance Questionnaires will be due earlier than the final proposal submission.  In the final RFP the past performance due date will be December 8, 2003 with final proposal submission of January 7, 2004.

Question D2a:  I realize that the current RFP is only a draft, but is the December 1, 2003 in Section L for proposal submittal valid?  

Answer D2a:  See answer D1 for final RFP dates.  

Question D2b:  If so, this only gives us 37 days to respond after the final RFP is published on November 24th, 2003.  Isn’t this a bit short?  I thought the norm was 60 to 90 days.

Answer D2b:  The number of days to respond to the RFP has been increased to allow additional time for Offerors to respond.  

Question D3:   We have performed an extensive review of the JIMMS draft RFP and have determined that the schedule posted by the Government on October 17, 2003 is insufficient for Offerors to produce a compliant response.  We base our conclusion on analysis of the specific mission suitability volume instructions that include a technical response to requirements from 3 current contracts, basis of estimate preparation for 17 detailed SOW areas, 3 scenarios, management plan, phase-in plan, safety and health plan, total compensation plan and other assorted requirements.  The level of complexity of this RFP is equal to, or greater than, other recent procurements conducted at NASA/JSC.  We analyzed the time period allotted by NASA/JSC for recent procurements of similar size, scope and complexity.  The proposal preparation period, defined as the time between draft RFP release and proposal due date, averaged 121 days.  The JIMMS procurement currently provides 56 days according to the latest published schedule.  Specific data included in our analysis is shown below.
	NASA/JSC Procurement
	Draft RFP Release
	Proposals Due
	Preparation Period

	ISS Program Integration and Control
	2/21/03
	6/11/03
	110 days

	ISS Mission Integration Contract
	2/20/03
	6/10/03
	110 days

	ISS Cargo Mission Contract
	2/19/03
	7/2/03
	133 days

	IOSS
	5/23/02
	9/4/02
	104 days

	Bioastronautics
	4/18/02
	9/17/02
	152 days

	NBL/SVMF
	3/15/02
	7/10/02
	117 days

	JIMMS
	10/6/03
	12/1/03
	56 days


We request that the Government publish a revised schedule that accounts for the size, scope and complexity of the JIMMS RFP and is consistent with other similar and recent procurements.  It is essential that Offerors be provided this information as soon as possible to facilitate proposal resource planning.  In addition, we request that the Government publish a realistic schedule for proposal preparation and avoid subsequent incremental extensions to the proposal due date.  Incremental extensions complicate the proposal development process and add significant bid and proposal expense.  Thank you for your consideration of this very important matter.

Answer D3:  In consideration of your request, the Government has revisited its schedule and has made the following changes; Volume II - Past Performance and the Past Performance Questionnaires will be due December 8, 2003 and the remaining Volumes will be due January 7, 2004.  These changes will be reflected in the final RFP.
Question D4:  Section L.7 Submission of Proposals indicates proposals are due to NASA on December 1, 2003.  The JIMMS website schedule indicates issuance of the Final RFP on 11/24/03.  Is it your intent to have the proposal delivered one week after the issuance of the final RFP?

Answer D4:  In the final RFP the past performance due date will be December 8, 2003 with final proposal submission of January 7, 2004.

Question D5:  Table L.13.1 Proposal Page limitations indicates that Part 1 – Technical Approach is limited to 44 pages and is followed by up to 6 pages of Responses to Scenarios.  Section L.13.III Mission Suitability identifies Part 1: Approaches subparts as A, B, C, & D  (Technical Approach, Management Approach, Staffing/Key Personnel, Safety and Health Approach respectively.)  What are the page limits for subparts B, C & D?  Are they missing from the page limits identified on Table L.13.1?  Is it perhaps intended that the discussion of subparts A, B, C and D be limited to 44 pages?  Please Clarify.

Answer D5: Table L.13.1 incorrectly showed the title of Part 1 as ‘Technical Approach.’  Table L.13.1 will be updated in the final RFP to reflect the title of Part 1 as ‘Approaches’ and will indicate page limits only apply to the Total Volume Level.  All references to ‘guidelines’ will be removed in the final RFP.  

Question D6:  Section L.13.III, Volume I, Part 3:  Plans and Other Data mentions seven (7) plans:

Management Plan

Teaming Agreements

Key Personnel Resumes

Staffing Plan

Total Compensation Plan

Phase-in Plan

Safety and Health Plan

In Table L.13.1, all but the Staffing Plan are mentioned as a part of Part 3, Plans and Other Data.  Is the Staffing Plan missing from Table L.13.1 and if so what is its page limit?

Answer D6:  Yes, the Staffing Plan was inadvertently omitted from Table L.13.1. The final RFP will be updated to reflect the following changes:

Volume I – Mission Suitability will be increased from 190 pages to 210 pages

Part 3: Plans and Other Data will be updated to include Staffing Plan. 

Question D7:  I noticed that proposed due date for both the JETS and the JIMMS proposals are the same, 12/1/03.  Since these contracts are small business set asides and most companies submitting proposals have a small staff (in addition to Thanksgiving), can the due date of one of these contracts be extended by at least 10 days?

Answer D7:  While the estimated due date for the JIMMS and JETS solicitations are the same, they are separate procurement activities.  The due dates are driven by the requirements of each procurement effort.  However, all dates posted for these efforts are estimates and any changes to the schedule will be reflected in the final RFP.

Question D8:  Can a company bid on JIMMS even if it has not attended the pre-proposal conference? 

Answer D8:
Yes.  Attendance at the JIMMS preproposal conference was optional and has no bearing on a company’s opportunity to propose.

Question D9:  L.13.V Volume III: Cost Proposal, a. General - The first sentence includes instructions to submit one volume labeled Volume IV Cost/Price Proposal.  Shouldn't this be Volume III?

Answer D9:  Yes, the reference to Volume IV Cost/Price Proposal was an error.  The final RFP will be corrected to reference Volume III Cost/Price Proposal.

Question D10:  L.13.V Volume III: Cost Proposal, e. Cost Proposal Template Instructions for IDIQ, 1. Efficiency Template - Is this template to be completed by the prime only?

Answer D10: Yes, the Efficiency Template should be completed by the Prime Offeror only. The final RFP will be modified to add this language into the Cost Proposal Template Instructions.

Question D11:  Attachment L-2, Phase-In Template, cell D8, should the formula multiply rather than add?

Answer D11:  Yes, this is a formula error.  The formula should multiply rather than add.  The template in final RFP will be updated to correct this error.

Question D12:  When providing the base hourly rates for non-exempt labor categories beginning CY02 thru CY05, are the Offerors expected to escalate the wage rates from CY01?  

Answer D12:  Yes, Offerors are expected to escalate the CY01 wage rates for non-exempt labor categories beginning in CY02 through CY05.

Question D13a:  M.7 Cost Factor, does the Government intend to factor the efficiencies into the probable cost for each Offeror?  

Answer D13a:  The Government intends to evaluate the validity, realism, and adequacy of any proposed efficiencies which will be then considered in an Offeror’s probable cost.  
Question D13b:  If so, Offerors with large efficiencies will be penalized with the mission suitability offset.  

Answer D13b:  If unrealistically large efficiencies are not adequately supported, the Offeror may be penalized with a probable cost adjustment and possibly a mission suitability offset. Also, a weakness associated with a lack of understanding the requirements may be assessed.  Again, efficiencies must be realistic and backed up with adequate rationale.

Question D13c:  If not, Offerors with large efficiencies will not receive benefit within their proposed cost/price.

Answer D13c:  See previous answer above.

Question D13d:  How will the proposed efficiencies be evaluated in terms of cost impact?

Answer D13d:  Each proposed efficiency is evaluated in terms of cost impact to determine whether there are associated resources and cost savings that will be realized as a result of implementing the efficiency.  In addition, the RFP will be updated to clarify that efficiencies should be reflected in the sample task order of your cost proposal.

Question D14:  L.13.III Volume 1, Mission Suitability, Part 1, A. Technical Approach, External Support and PAO Multimedia Services Approach (WBS 9.0- 10.0) - Paragraph "c" instructs the Offeror to provide a ten-minute or less video. What are the acceptable formats for this video, how many copies should be provided, and what are the labeling instructions?  

Answer D14:  As stated in the RFP the preferred format for the ten-minute video is Beta S, however, other formats will be acceptable.  Provide two copies of your video.  The videos should be labeled with the solicitation number, company name, subject of the video and the date produced. The final RFP will be updated to reflect these changes.

Question D15:  Section L, Appendix L-5, Sample Task Order 1 - SOW 3.0 Management and Administration (and some other SOW elements) includes references DRD 27A, 27B, and 27C.  However, the DRL list does not include these DRDs.  Please identify these DRDs.    

Answer D15:  The content of DRD 27 was moved to Attachment J-9, Performance Standards.  The sample task order reference to DRD 27 was in error and will be corrected in the final RFP.

Question D16a:  During the tour, we were shown a library of 35,000 video productions on VHS and Beta Sp tape stock.  Are these productions closed captioned and audio described?  


Answer D16a:  The 35,000 legacy video productions viewed during the JIMMS preproposal tours are not all closed captioned and/or audio described.

Question D16b:  If not, is there a plan (as part of JIMMS) to closed caption and/or audio describe these productions in order to be in compliance with Section 508?

Answer D16b:  The JIMMS solicitation specifies that the contractor shall follow all JSC and Government policies, which includes Section 508.  Legacy videos are captioned and/or audio described as the productions are ordered only if these features are requested. 

Question D17:  Is there a plan to include in the RFP, a requirement for closed captioning of JSC's real-time production of live TV events broadcasts?

Answer D17:  The RFP contains the requirement for compliance with Section 508 (as stated in Section C, Paragraph 3.2.1).  Live broadcasts are captioned upon request.  Most broadcasts use vignette signing rather than captioning.  

Question D18:  Is there a need for subtitling and/or language translation for this contract?

Answer D18: Subtitling/Captioning of video productions are performed upon request.  Language translation is not a part of the JIMMS solicitation.  Section C, Paragraph  9.1.1, states “…coordinating satellite transmissions and language translation as required..”.   This statement indicates that the contractor is responsible for coordination with existing translation services at the Center.

Question D19a:  Referencing the Video/Meetings/Teleconferencing studio that the JSC is transitioning to Multimedia Multi-site Collaborative Meeting Capability, will these meetings require closed captioning? 

 
Answer D19a:  The Multimedia Multi-site Collaborative Meeting Capability must meet Section 508 compliance unless a compliant tool does not exist. 


Question D19b:  Additionally, does JSC have closed captioning equipment on-site, or will the equipment be included in the RFP?


Answer D19b:  JSC has captioning equipment on site.  The equipment is included in the RFP as Contractor Accountable Government Property.

Question D20:  Is JSC currently closed captioning its pre-recorded materials and live events? If so, are you using a vendor under a current contract or BPA?

Answer D20: Captioning (Open or Closed) is provided as requested. The JIMMS contractor will be required to provide this service.

Question D21:  If the answers to questions 16-20 above are no, will there be a plan in the immediate or near future to issue a separate contract or BPA for closed captioning and audio description services as specified in Section 508 (summarized below)?

Answer D21: See answers to questions 16-20.   
Question D22:  Can the Government provide the following requirements for the facility required in H.10?

· Clear height requirement 

· Paint room specifications 

· Special climate control requirements

· Security requirements 

· Load capacity specifications (# of dock doors and type of loading:  i.e. grade level vs. dock height) 

· Truck court depth (size and types of trucks accessing facility)

· Fire control specifications 

· Storage rack requirements

· Crane or hoisting requirements 

Answer D22:  The Government’s requirement is for the contractor to provide approximately 18,000 square feet of off-site storage space in close proximity to the Johnson Space Center.  Relative to the question above, the current facility’s attributes are as follows: 

· Clear height requirement – approximately 23 feet 

· Paint room specifications – no paint room inside of the facility 

· Special climate control requirements – normal climate control in all areas (air conditioning, heating)

· Security requirements – lockable facility 

· Load capacity specifications (# of dock doors and type of loading:  i.e. grade level vs. dock height) – 1 standard loading dock and 1 grade level dock

· Truck court depth (size and types of trucks accessing facility) – can accept a 40 foot long trailer

· Fire control specifications – meets standard city code

· Storage rack requirements – ability to store boxes, small exhibit containers, television equipment, sizes and weights vary from small (10 lbs.) to large (300 lbs).
· Crane or hoisting requirements – Hoisting equipment, maximum weight three hundred pounds, is a part of the equipment listing; no crane requirement

Question D23:  Reference Paragraph 8.3.4.4; What “non-standard load software” or formats does IRD anticipate the contractor will need to provide?

Answer D23:  None, the customer provides non-standard load software.  Section C, paragraph 8.3.4.4 states, “Neither non-standard load software nor formats will be provided under this contract, but must be provided by the customer.”  

Question D24:  Reference Paragraph 8.3.4.4; Can JSC estimate how many collaborative software applications and copies will be required?
Answer D24:  In Section C, paragraph 8.3.4.4, the contractor is to provide coordination between audio/visual presentations and collaborative software applications already in place. Additional collaborative software applications and copies are a potential requirement, however, they are not defined at this time.  There are currently 15 licenses for Group Systems Software in use by IRD.

Question D25a:  Reference Paragraph 10.1.1; Is the traveling trailer GFE?  

Answer D25a: The traveling trailer referenced in Section C, paragraph 10.1.1 is listed in Section J, Attachment J-14, Contractor Accountable Government Property – Government, and is therefore furnished by the Government.

Question D25b:  Can the JSC provide examples of the special materials the contractor may have to purchase?

Answer D25b: The term ‘special materials’ referenced in Section C, paragraph 10.1.1 refers to show services at events where the Government is participating.  Some examples include carpet rental, space rental, special cleaning services, and utilities.

Question D26:  Will JSC fund for TDY’s to periodic industry related conferences/training such as NAB, SMPTE, etc?

Answer D26:  Government required conferences and training would be incorporated into a task order and directly charged to the contract.  Discretionary conferences and training in support of the contract should be an indirect charge in accordance with the contractor’s accounting procedures. 

Question D27:  Reference Paragraph 8.3.4.2.C; Since it is not specified in the text, is it appropriate to proceed with believing that subtitles and audio support will not be required to comply with Section 508?

Answer D27:  Subtitles, captioning and audio support will be utilized when required.  Section 508 compliance is noted in Section C, Paragraph 3.2.1 which states that the contractor shall follow all JSC and Government policies.

Question D28:  Reference Paragraph 8.3.4.4; Are the video projectors, video players, and laptops GFE?

Answer D28:  The video projectors, video players and laptops referenced in Section C, paragraph 8.3.4.4 are Government provided property.

Question D29:  Reference Paragraph 8.2.2 Repair; in the third paragraph, are the items within the JSC Central Security Control System contained in J-10?

Answer D29:  Attachment J-10 will be revised in the final RFP to contain the JSC Central Security Control System.  See Answer D64 for more details on the JSC Central Security Control System.

Question D30:  Reference Paragraph 8.2, Multimedia Maintenance; is maintenance required beyond Preventive Maintenance? (i.e., circuit board failure, mechanical failure, etc.)

Answer D30:  Yes, maintenance is required beyond preventative maintenance.  Please refer to Section C, Paragraph 8.2.2, Repair.

Question D31:  Reference Paragraph 8.3.1.1; Does the contractor have to provide the special respirators, flight gear, or other support equipment to fulfill Engineering Test Support?

Answer D31:  The contractor will be required to provide special equipment such as hard hats, aircraft flight suits and boots, and other protective equipment (as required).  Respirators are not a requirement and the Final RFP will be updated to reflect this.

Question D32:  Reference Paragraph 8.3.1.1; Who pays for the Air Force Class 3 physical and applicable flight training?

Answer D32:  The Government, as stated in Section C, paragraph 8.3.11, provides the annual Air Force III physical and applicable flight training. 

Question D33:  Reference Paragraph 8.3.1.1; Is there film scanning equipment that is non GFE that belongs to the incumbent contractor, that will have to be replaced/provided prior to contract start?

Answer D33:  All film scanning equipment is GFE and will be provided to the successor contractor.

Question D34:  Reference Paragraph 8.3.3.2; Same question as 8.3.3.1 for transfer equipment.

Answer D34:   All film scanning equipment is GFE and will be provided to the successor contractor.

Question D35:  Reference Paragraph 10.1.2; Where are the large and small power tools housed?  Is this a Government furnished location?

Answer D35:  The large and small power tools referenced in Section C, paragraph 10.1.2 are housed at the off-site contractor provided facility.  Refer to Section H, Clause H.10 for details on the off-site facility.

Question D36:  Reference Paragraph 10.2,1 “Arranging Transportation” for VIPs:  Is this Government transportation?

Answer D36:  Yes, the contractor in Section C, paragraph 10.2.1 is to arrange transportation using Government provided vehicles.

Question D37:  Reference Paragraph 3.1.1 Facility Management:  Only 2 or 3 of the on-site buildings (227 & 423/424) are 100% contractor occupied. Should we assume Facility management responsibilities would be limited to only those areas occupied by contractor personnel in the other buildings?

Answer D37:  Facility management responsibilities apply to the entire building.  Alternate facility management functions may encompass more than the buildings referenced above but will only apply to buildings in which a JIMMS contractor resides.  This will be clarified in the final RFP.

Question D38:  Reference Paragraph 4.2.A PKI:  Is the cost of obtaining and maintaining certifications an allowable cost?  (Note:  this question applies across the board to all contract required certifications)

Answer D38:  For PKI, the training required is an internal certification process and is provided by the Government.   The cost of maintaining other certifications across the contract is allowable when the Government requires the certifications.

Question D39:  Reference Paragraph 4.2.B Center Cell Phone, Pager and Handheld…  How “fluid” is the list of authorized users of Center cell phones, pagers, and handheld devices?  How many “permanently assigned” versus “loan pool” users?

Answer D39:  The list of authorized users is very fluid and can fluctuate by 20%.  Currently there are 1,718 permanently assigned pagers; 178 permanently assigned blackberries; approximately 150 permanent cell phones and 50 cell phones in the loan pool.

Question D40:  Reference Paragraph 4.2.C Customer Service System Operations:  Has the “extensive” customization of Remedy substantially eroded the likelihood that an otherwise compatible “front-end” system can be used without major customization effort?  

Answer D40:  Without knowledge of the specific “front-end” system the Government is unable to evaluate the compatibility of such a system.

Question D41:  Reference Paragraph 4.2.E Software Distribution:  How many remote access technologies are in use at the Center and how many users have access?

Answer D41:  There are three primary methods of remote access to the JSC network.  The number of users varies, however anyone with a JSC domain ID may have remote access capability, if approved.

Question D42:  Reference Paragraph 6.1.1 EDMS:  Target date for evolution of the entire legacy document collection to EDMS – other than “on demand”?  

Answer D42:  IRD currently has no target date for evolution of the entire legacy document collection to EDMS.  

Question D43:  Regarding user training – one-on-one or classes or combination of both?

Answer D43:  The contractor will determine the appropriate training method or approach that best meets the requirements.

Question D44:  Reference Paragraph 6.2.2 Satellite Library Operations:  Is UH-Clear Lake considered a satellite library for purposes of providing complete library services?  

Answer D44:  No, the UH-Clear Lake Library is not considered a satellite library.  The JIMMS Contract does not staff the UH-Clear Lake Library. 

Question D45:  Reference Paragraph 3.3:  For systems transitioning to the JIMMS contractor with no (or outdated) configuration management documentation, would additional Task Order funding be provided to bring systems into CM compliance?"

Answer D45:  Configuration management documentation is a requirement of the JIMMS contract and as such, contractor efforts to create or update these documents are considered within the scope of the sample task order.  This activity is ongoing. The contractor’s personnel, who operate and maintain the systems, should continuously preserve the currency of the associated configuration management documentation.

Question D46:  Reference Paragraph 3.1.1 Facility Management:  Following requirements that the contractor provide an “alternate facility manager” in buildings where the contractor resides, this paragraph states that the contractor shall coordinate installation or removal of systems, removal of sensitive information (e.g. sensitive 
information stored on hard drive, sensitive photos, etc.).  Does this apply only to systems specifically named as part of the responsibility of this contract and/or being used by employees of this contract?  Or would the JIMMS contractor be expected to provide such services for other equipment in those buildings (e.g. equipment provided under ODIN)?

Answer D46:  The alternate facility manager is responsible for maintaining an orderly and safe work environment for the entire facility.  The JIMMS contractor will not be responsible for coordination of installation or removal of systems, or removal of sensitive information.  This update will be reflected in the final RFP.  For information on facility management responsibilities please refer to the JIMMS technical library.

Question D47a:  Reference Paragraph 3.2.1 Operations, Project and Function Management: Item “G” states that one of the activities the JIMMS contractor shall perform will be “Creating and maintaining required IT Security Plans and Reports”.  Will the requirement cover only those systems specifically assigned to the JIMMS contract?  

Answer D47a: Yes, creating and maintaining the required IT Security Plans and Reports covers only those systems specifically assigned to or created under the JIMMS contract.

Question D47b:  Since systems may be grouped at the discretion of the owning organization so that the number of security plans generated is manageable, could the final RFP include a list of security plans for which JIMMS will be responsible to include the latest approval date and next delivery date for each plan?  Note:  It is assumed that all operational systems transitioning to JIMMS will have current, approved IT Security Plans in place at the time of transition.  If that is correct, could NASA so state that fact in the RFP?

Answer D47b:  As a part of transition the contractor will review and update IT security plans, as required.   NASA can not say that all operational systems transitioning to JIMMS will have current approved IT security plans at time of transition.  Some systems may be in the process of being modified or updated and new systems may be under development.  

Question D48a:  Reference Paragraph 3.2.5.2 Software Patches and Updates:  The second paragraph of this section states that the Contractor shall assess and make recommendations regarding software patches for “all supported platforms within 30 days”.  Would “all supported platforms” mean only JIMMS supported platforms?  

Answer D48a:  Yes, all supported platforms would mean only JIMMS supported platforms.  

Question D48b:  Or would IRD be looking to JIMMS for recommendations for patches for standard platforms supported by the Directorate?

Answer D48b:  The contractor is not expected to support anything outside the scope of the contract.

Question D49:  Reference Paragraph 4.1 Customer Support:  This paragraph states that the Customer Support Center operations are intended to cover all aspects of IRD products and services then mentions that other contracts may include a centralized help desk function.  Is it correct to assume that except where the end customer may mistakenly call the incorrect organization, that the other contracts receive calls directly?  Or would the JIMMS Customer Support Center receive all calls as appropriate?

Answer D49:  With the exception of the ODIN help desk, all calls are directed through the Customer Support Center.

Question D50:  Reference Paragraph 4.2  Specialized Support Services:  Under paragraph “A” of this section, there is a requirement that the “Contractor provide identity checks of PKI recipients”.  Is this coordination with JSC Security or local Contractor Security Officers to validate identification or something more?

Answer D50:  As part of the certification process users are required to show the JIMMS contractor photo identification before they receive their PKI certification.  No coordination with other offices is required.

Question D51: Reference SOW paragraphs 3.1.1, 3.1.7, 3.1.8:  “…the contractor shall provide activity metrics per Metrics Performance Plan (DRD-04).”  Since the DRD-04 has several levels, which level is required for these particular paragraphs of the Statement of Work? Will the Government provide the frequency required for Level 2 and 3 Metrics called for in DRD-04? 

Answer D51:  The question referenced above pertains to the previous solicitation, IOSS.  

Question D52:  Reference Paragraph 3.1.2 Environmental Compliance:  This section states that handling of photographic chemical waste is principal concern on this contract. During the pre-proposal tours it was stated that Facilities would be handling these chemicals in the “Zero Emissions” recycling plant. Will the Contractor handle these tasks?

Answer D52:  The contractor will be responsible for operation and maintenance of the Zero Discharge system.  Disposal of waste products is the responsibility of the Center Operations Directorate.

Question D53:  Reference Paragraph 4.1 Customer Support Center:  This sections states that the Contractor shall operate the Customer Support Center based on industry best practices established by the Service and Support Professional Association. Will the Contractor be required to become a member of this organization?

Answer D53:  Membership is not required in the Service and Support Professional Association.
Question D54:  Reference Paragraph 4.1.E Curate The IRD Website:  This sections states “The Contractor shall ensure the timeliness of information included in the IRD website…” How is timeliness defined in this situation?  

Answer D54:  Timeliness is based on the criticality of the information and is evaluated based on customer satisfaction.

Question D55:  Reference Paragraph 4.2.A Public Key Infrastructure:  This section states “The Contractor shall provide identity checks of PKI recipients.” What documentation would constitute acceptable in this section?

Answer D55:  The PKI process is defined by the Agency procedures which are available in the JIMMS Technical Library.  See answer D50 for further information.

Question D56:  Reference Paragraph 4.2.A Center Cell Phone, Pager, and Handheld Device Distribution and Support:  This section requires support for RIM Blackberry devices. Is the mail reflector used by Center Blackberries a desktop reflector, and Enterprise Blackberry server or a combination of both?  If both Desktop and Enterprise Blackberry servers are used, what percentages of each are supported?

Answer D56:  The Government is utilizing an Enterprise Blackberry server based reflector system.  Blackberry server maintenance and operations are not covered under this contract.

Question D57:  Reference Paragraph 5.3 Database Administration:  This section lists that Oracle, Microsoft SQL Server, Microsoft Access, ADABAS/Natural, Nomad and MySQL databases must be supports by the Contractor. Generally, what percentages of each are supported by this contract?

Answer D57:  Generally speaking this is driven by customer requirements.  SQL Server is the largest of these products.  The current approximate percentages are as follows:  49% SQLServer, 8% Oracle, 15% ADABASE, 18% MSAccess, 6% Nomad, 2% MySQL, 2% Dynbase.

Question D58:  Reference Paragraph 6.1.1 Electronic Document Management System (EDMS):  This section requires the Contractor to implement a “scan on demand” capability and make hard copy documents available via EDMS. In what period of time is the Contractor expected to complete this task by document?

Answer D58:  The period of time is customer driven and varies by job.  

Question D59:  Reference Paragraph 6.1.3 Engineering Drawing Control Center (EDMS):  This section requires the Contractor to provide “research and reproduction services for the EDCC collections. In what period of time will the Contractor be expected to complete this task by request?  This section states that the Contractor shall transition paper and microform based technical data repositories to the DDMS. What is the expected timeframe for completion of this task?

Answer D59: The period of time required is customer driven and varies by complexity and priority.  There is not a specified schedule for transition of the paper and microform based technical repositories to the DDMS.

Question D60:  Reference Paragraph 6.1.6 Document and Data Scanning:  This section states files types may be required to be converted to and from TIFF, JPG and PDF. Is one preferable to the customer than the others? Is the file type Contactor selected? End user selected?

Answer D60: Section C, paragraph 6.1.6, states no single file type is preferable. The file type for document and data scanning is customer driven.


Question D61:  Reference Paragraph 6.1.3  EDCC:   This paragraph mentions that duplicate and backup copies of Center facility drawings are to be maintained and stored at “multiple locations” in accordance with the Hurricane/Severe Weather Plan.  May the contractor assume that such storage is already provided at a cost to the Government (in Government facilities or commercial facilities paid for by the Government)?

Answer D61:  The Government does not provide off-site storage for this purpose.  The contractor is required to provide this storage off-site.   Currently, this storage is provided in the contractor off-site facility.  The cost of the facilities will be reimbursed under the contract.

Question D62:  Reference Paragraph 6.2.2 Satellite Library Operations:  This section requires the contractor to provide library services in satellite locations. What are the number and locations of satellite library services to be supported by the Contractor?

Answer D62:  Currently there are two satellite libraries.  They are located in Buildings 37 and 4S.

Question D63:  Reference Paragraph 6.3 Records Management:  This section states the Contractor shall make visits to civil servant and other Contractor locations to conduct records appraisal. What are the numbers of visits required and the locations to be supported by the Contractor?

Answer D63: A civil servant is currently performing the Records Management function.  This function is not included in the sample task order, however, Offerors are required to provide pricing per Section B, Clause B.6 in the event that this function is required to be performed under this contract in the future. 

Question D64:  Reference Paragraph 8.2.2 Repair:  This paragraph mentions that the contractor will be responsible for the repair of “selected items” associated with the JSC CSCS in an expedited fashion.  Could IRD please define “selected items”?  This section states the Contractor shall be required to repair selected items in the JSC Central Security Control System and these requests should be “expedited”. What are the types and numbers of equipment to be repaired?

Answer D64:  The CSCS consists of 50+ cameras positioned in various locations around the Center.  It also consists of access control systems in selected buildings, which may include card readers and cameras. JSC determines the criticality of the repair.   More detailed information will be provided during contract performance, as necessary.   

Question D65:  Reference Paragraph 10.1.3 Artifacts Management:  The JIMMS contractor is asked to “secure artifacts” at JSC and Space Center Houston”.  Are all artifacts therefore under physical security provided by JSC Security?

Answer D65:  The term ‘secure artifacts’ means the contractor will provide secure storage for these items in the contractor provided off-site facility.  The contractor is only responsible for maintaining artifacts at Space Center Houston.  The final RFP will be updated with this clarification.

Question D66:  Reference Paragraph 10.2.2  Public Affairs Internet Content Operations:  This section requires that the Contractor use PAO themes and messages to ensure a consistency on all Internet materials. Does a “thematic style guide” for web site development exist and will it be provided by PAO?

Answer D66:  A thematic style guide does not exist. The customer will approve the look and feel of the website.

Question D67:  Reference Paragraph F.3 (a)(2) Contractor Phase-In Will the Contractor have access to conference rooms/offices for on-site meetings of relatively short duration?
Answer D67:  On-site office space will not be provided during phase-in. On-site conference rooms may be reserved if available.  Internal company meetings to discuss phase-in plans should be held at the contractor’s facility.

Question D68:  Reference Paragraph G.7(d)  Award  Fee:  How long will “reserved” award fee be reserved?  

Answer D68:  Reserved award fee is held by the Government until the contract is completed and all incurred cost audits have been completed and dispositioned.
Question D69:  Reference Paragraph H.4 (C) Providing Facility Items:  “The contractor shall replace any of the existing facilities identified in Section J-13 above that reach the end of their useful life during the contract period or which are beyond economical maintenance or repair, if the facilities are still needed for contract performance.  Such replacements shall be made with contractor-owned facilities and shall not be a direct charge to the contract.”
Question:  Respectfully request clarification of the statement that “Such replacements shall be made with contractor-owned facilities and shall not be a direct charge to the contract. (emphasis added).”  If the facilities are determined to still be needed for contract performance, how then can the costs for such facilities replacement not be considered a direct charge to the contract?  The Federal Acquisition Regulation provides that a contract cost must meet certain criteria for direct charge...allocable, allowable and, meet the allocability criteria.  The contractor could not charge the replacement cost to another contract or indirect pool since no other contract or company organization  “benefits” from the use of the facilities replacement. Please explain in further detail the specific contract requirements brought to bear by this clause, i.e. are “facility items” limited to the items in J-13, do other items fall under this contract requirement, what is meant by not being a direct charge to the contract, how will the contractor be reimbursed for the investment in replaced facility items, etc.

Answer D69:  The language in Paragraph H.4 ( c) Providing Facility Items which states “Such replacements shall be made with contractor-owned facilities and shall not be direct charge to the contract” will be revised in the final RFP to read “Such replacements shall be made with contractor-owned facilities and shall be charged in accordance with the contractor’s established accounting procedures.”

Question D70:  Reference Paragraph 5.0  Application Services:  This section requires that the Contractor shall provide lifecycle support consistent with the Carnegie-Mellon SEI Capability Maturity Model Level 3. What levels are the individual application at on the SEI CMM Scale?  If the application is below SEI CMM Level 3 will contractors be required to raise them to Level 3?  Does audit SEI CMM audit documentation exist for current applications and processes?

Answer D70:  Approximately 17% of the applications are below CMM Level 3 and 83% of the applications are at CMM Level 3.  Legacy applications do not have to be raised to CMM Level 3, however, modifications or updates to these applications need to follow the CMM Level 3 model.  

Question D71a:  Reference Section H.5, paragraphs 3 and 4. This paragraph discusses the circumstances under which the contractor would be asked to transfer title "to either (a) the Government, or (b) a successor contractor." RFP Section H.5 Paragraph 4 then goes on to describe the payment scenario if transfer of title is made to the government, but the Section is silent with regard to payment timeframe by a successor contractor. Will NASA write a requirement into the successor contract for the successor contractor to buy any such equipment? 
Answer D71a:  The Government cannot require the successor contractor to purchase undepreciated capital equipment.  However, if the successor decides to purchase the equipment, payment terms should be negotiated between the incumbent and the successor contractor. The Government cannot stipulate the time period for the successor contractor to buy undepreciated capital equipment.  

Question D71b:  If not, how would any potential loss on the selling of the equipment on the open market be reimbursed to the contractor?

Answer D71b:  It is not the Government’s responsibility to guarantee that the contractor recovers the full acquisition value of the item.  
Question D72a:  Reference paragraph 3.3, Configuration Management. What type of configuration management is presently being utilized and are there any engineering drawings or exhibit drawings available for the systems presently being utilized?

Answer D72a:  IRD performs component level configuration management for its systems.  IRD utilizes a configuration control board that tracks and approves changes to major systems.  There are engineering and/or exhibit drawings available for major systems.  The contractor maintains the currency of these drawings.

Question D72b: What type of software tools are currently being used to generate and update these drawings (I.e. CAD CAM and what version)?

Answer D72b:  AutoCAD, release 2000i, is the product currently being used for this activity.

Question D72c:  What level of configuration management is currently being performed?  Component level only or does it extend to individual card level management for the computer systems?

Answer D72c:  Component level.  See answer D72a for more details.    

Question D73:  Reference Paragraph 3.1.1, Facility Management.  Are there any certificates or licenses required for the personnel performing these tasks?

Answer D73:  No, there are not any certificates or licenses required for personnel performing alternate facility management tasks.

Question D74:  Reference paragraph 5.2, Applications Development.  This paragraph states that application environment consists of a variety of COTS and internally built applications as well as web-based applications and utilities.  Were the internally built applications developed using a full system life cycle support process and methodology, such as Rational Rose, with the documentation for each of these systems developed internally also (i.e. requirements documents, Systems definitions, systems testing plans, etc)?

Answer D74: Most, but not all, of the internally built applications used a full life cycle support process.  The exceptions are generally the older, legacy software applications.  See Answer D70 for related information.

Question D75a:  Reference paragraph 8.2.2, Repair:  What level of repair is currently being performed on the equipment utilized at JSC (Depot level or intermediate level)?

Answer D75a:  Both intermediate level and depot level are required depending on the specific item.

Question D75b:  The SOW states that the contractor shall be responsible for the repair of selected items associated with the JSC Central Security Control System.  Are these selected items identified and if so to what level of repair is the contractor required to maintain these systems?

Answer D75b:  See Answer D64 for an item summary.  The contractor is required to maintain the full functionality of these systems.

Question D75c:  What level of security clearance is required for the maintenance of these security systems?

Answer D75c:  No special security clearance is needed for the maintenance of the security systems beyond obtaining a JSC Contractor badge.

Question D76:  Will NASA permit Offerors to reproduce a select few of the IDIQ templates by using MS Excel's Pivot Table feature, given the large volume of data that will be generated from the Bases of Estimate? Per RFP Section L.13.V.c, it is understood for example that, "the model must be able to compute the cost impact of 1) increasing (or decreasing) the number of FTEs; or 2) increasing (or decreasing) the indirect rate(s)." Since use of Pivot Tables would be limited to only a few templates, interactive functionality of the model would not be compromised thereby as Pivot Table data can be easily refreshed, if necessary.

Answer D76:  Due to the possibility of receiving a multitude of pivot table formats the Government will not accept pivot tables.

Question D77:  What workload metrics were used as the basis for the Independent Government Estimate (IGE) contained within Section L of the draft RFP?  Was the sample task order contained in Appendix L-5 used as the basis for the IGE?

Answer D77:  The sample task order in Appendix L-5 contains the metrics that form the basis of the IGE located in Section L. 

Question D78:  Section L, page 29, paragraph L.13.IV.A.  There appears to be a discrepancy in the number of years for using past performance contract.  The first paragraph required the Offeror to identify the contract within the past five years; however, the second paragraph requires the subcontractor team members to identify contracts within the past three years.  Additionally, paragraph II. PAST PERFORMANCE EVALUATION, informs the evaluator that “only performance in the past 3 years is relevant.  Please clarify.

Answer D78:  Yes, there is a discrepancy in this section.  The references in Section L should refer to past performance requests for the last five years for both the Offeror and subcontractor/team members.  Past Performance in Section L and the Past Performance Questionnaire of the final RFP will be updated to reflect five years.

Question D79: Section M.4.3 The draft RFP references an “oral discussion”.   Does JSC intend to hold a formal Oral Discussion?  If so, when, please?

Answer D79: Section L.11 Instructions to Offerors-Competitive Acquisition states that discussions are negotiations that occur after establishment of the competitive range that may, at the Contracting Officer's discretion, result in the Offeror being allowed to revise its proposal.   If oral discussions are required, only Offerors who are notified that they are in the competitive range will be requested to attend. 

Question D80:  Total Compensation Templates

Salaries and Wages Non-Exempt–TC(a) – This template distinguishes between DOL Covered Personnel and Collective Bargaining Agreement (CBA).  Are any incumbent employees currently under any CBAs?  If so, will JSC please provide a copy of the CBA for costing purposes?

Answer D80:  This is a standard template that will not be revised.  However, there are no collective bargaining agreements on this effort.

Question D81: Section L, page 36, paragraph L.13.V, subparagraphs e.9 and e.10, Overhead Template (OHT) and G&A Template (GAT). Both paragraphs state that the "prime contractor and all major subcontractor(s) must provide their Forward Pricing Rate Agreement (FPRA). . ." We do not have an FPRA, as we are a small business. We do, however, have DCAA-approved provisional billing rates for calendar year 2003 applicable to our cost-reimbursement type contracts, which are also the rates we use to form a basis for pricing our proposals for similar work. Therefore, it is requested that the requirement for an FPRA be required only if the Offeror has one. 

Answer D81:  Section L, paragraph L.13.V subparagraphs e.9 and e.10 of the Final RFP will be updated to reflect that these templates, OHT and GAT, are only required if a FPRA is not available.  You are not required to develop a FPRA.

Question D82: Data Requirements List (DRL). Item 9, Safety and Health Plan, Block 6, "1st subm. date" is 8/1/2004, which is the contract start date (CSD); however, Block 8 of the DRD requires submission "(with the proposal)." Therefore, when is it due, on the CSD of 8/1/2004, or with our proposal submission?

Answer 82:  DRL Item 9 incorrectly shows the 1st submission date for the Safety and Health Plan as 8/1/2004.  In the final RFP DRL Item 9 will be revised to show the first submission date as ‘submitted with the proposal’ and yearly updates thereafter. 

Question D83: Does a technical design document specification exist for the internal and external websites?  Is the “look and feel” of the internal and external website the same as the “PAO Themes and messages” referenced in Section 10.3.2.2?
Answer D83:  The PAO themes and messages only apply to the websites referenced in Section C, paragraph 10.3.2.2.  Other websites covered under the JIMMS contract are governed by the specific requirements of the individual owners.  A technical design document covering all internal and external websites supported by JIMMS does not exist.

Question D84: Section L.13.II. PROPOSAL DEVELOPMENT AND PAGE LIMITATION (Page 13 of 52, third paragraph) states that the “Offeror shall submit proposals in the formats specified in Table L.13.1”.  This table identifies all electronic formats as either MS Word or MS Excel.  However, the paragraph of the same Section L.13.II entitled “Font and Page Setup:” subsequently states “…The preferred method of implementing hyperlinks is to indicate the hyperlink by blue font color and establishing the hyperlink in Acrobat (emphasis added) with ‘Invisible rectangle’ with ‘no outline.’”.  Please clarify whether or not electronic copies are to be converted to Acrobat (i.e., to “pdf” format) prior to submittal to the government.

Answer D84:  This was an oversight in the draft RFP.  The final RFP will be updated to remove the reference to Acrobat. 

Question D85a:  In Table L.13.1, does the row for Volume II, Past Performance Attachments, refer to the copies of the Attachment L-4 Past Performance Questionnaires that were sent to companies as well as to copies of all OSHA logs required under L.13.IV, Section B, Paragraph 1 and insurance carrier certification letters required under L.13.IV, Section B, Paragraph 3?

Answer D85a: Table L.13.1 will be updated in the final RFP to add blocks for Safety and Environmental Performance and Export Control Experience.  These two categories will have no page limit. 

Question D85b:  Referring to the question immediately above, what electronic format should be used for the OSHA logs and certification letters? 

Answer D85b:  For the OSHA logs and the certification letters only, Offerors can scan these documents and save them as a .PDF, .GIF or .JPG file. 

Question D85c: Is scanning as “graphics” into a Word document acceptable? Should these various types of attachment be submitted in a single combined file or as independent files, like, for example, the various plans listed independently in Table L.13.1 for Volume 1, Part 3?

Answer 85c:  For OSHA logs and certification letters only, scanning as graphics into a Word document is acceptable.  Plans should be independent files.  OSHA logs and certification letters may be combined into a single file.

Question 85d:  Are we correct in assuming that despite the volume title, the 15-page limit for Volume 2 applies to the combination of the discussions of Section A Past Performance, Section B Safety and Environmental Performance, and Section C Export Control Experience, rather than to Section A alone?

Answer 85d:  The 15-page limit applies to Volume II - Past Performance.  Table L.13.1 will be revised in the final RFP to indicate that page limits will not apply to Safety and Environmental Performance and Export Control.  See answer D85a for more information.   

Question D86:  Section L.13.II, in the subsection paragraph entitled “Proposal Format and Structure,” states that “each volume of the electronic proposal shall be in its own subdirectory on the (emphasis added) CD-ROM.” In light of this statement, are we correct in assuming that Table L.13.1 is to be interpreted as requiring 2 CD-ROMs, each of which contains the entire proposal (all volumes) rather than that the Table requires a total of 10 CD-ROMs (plus 1 for the DCAA), each of which bears solely the contents of the row on the table listing the CD requirement?

Answer D86:  The Government requires two (2) CD-ROM’s, each containing a copy of Volume II-Past Performance, to be submitted on date referenced for Volume II Past Performance submittal in the RFP.  The Government also requires two (2) CD-ROM’s each containing the entire proposal submittal.  An additional one (1) CD-ROM containing Volume III-Cost/Price Proposal is required to be submitted to the cognizant DCAA office.  Section L.13.II will be updated to clarify this requirement.

Question D87:  Please clarify exactly what is due as “past performance” on November 17. Is it:

a. ONLY Attachment L-4 Past Performance Questionnaires completed by cited reference points of contact (and submitted directly to the government by those reference points of contact)?

b. All paper copies of Volume II plus the Attachment L-4s sent directly to the government plus 2 CD-ROMs containing only Volume II information and only those electronic linkages internal to Volume II (i.e. with any cross-volume linkages deferred until the other volumes have been prepared for submittal by 12-1)?

c. Only paper copies of Volume II plus the Attachment L-4s (with electronic versions of Volume II, fully-linked and indexed across all Volumes, to be delivered on the CD-ROMs due on December 1)?

d. Paper copies of Volume II plus the Attachment L-4s plus electronic copies of Volume II fully-linked and indexed across all Volumes (despite the fact that other volumes will not be scheduled for submittal before December 1)?

Answer D87:  The correct answer is B - The Government requires 10 (ten) paper copies of Volume II plus the Attachment L-4, Past Performance Questionnaires sent directly to the Government plus 2 (two) CD-ROMs each containing a copy of Volume II information and only those electronic linkages internal to Volume II.  The dates for submittal of past performance information and the final proposal submission have been revised.  Please refer to answer D1.

Question D88a:  The subsection of L.13.III, Section A Technical Approach dealing with “External Support and PAO Multimedia Services Approach (WBS 9.0-10.0) requires in bullet C submittal of a sample program produced by the “Offeror” within the last two years. Is “Offeror” to be interpreted as “any team member or subcontractor” or as the “prime contractor”?

Answer D88a:  The term Offeror refers to the proposal team, not just the prime. The final RFP will be updated to show Offeror or Offeror’s proposal team member.  

Question D88b: What are the packaging requirements for the program (e.g. separately packed from each Volume?) and in what physical form should it be packaged (cassettes? Video DVDs?)?

Answer D88b:  See Answer D14 for format and labeling instructions.  The video needs to be provided with the final proposal submission and should be separately packaged from each Volume.  This is a change that will be reflected in the final RFP.

Question D89:  L.13.IV Section A discusses requirements for two seemingly independent lists of past performance contracts. One, associated with “PP Form 1”, concerns contracts in excess of $500K that the company has had within the past five years. We presume that these contracts may be freely discussed as part of the 15-page Volume 2 narrative description, and require no point-of-contact information for government reference checks. A second list of contracts is associated with Attachment L-4 questionnaires and concerns contracts (without size limit) that the company has had within the past three years which best demonstrate relevance of company abilities to the SOW. Reference submittals (as L-4 questionnaires) are required for these contracts. However, Attachment L-4 is also labeled PP Form 1. Are there 2 separate forms? If so, where is PP Form 1? If not, what requirements for period of performance and contract size actually apply to Attachment L-4?

Answer D89:  The Offeror may freely discuss the 5 contracts in excess of $500K as part of the Volume II Past performance narrative description.  However, point-of-contact information is required for Government reference checks.  This will be obtained from the completed Section I of the Past Performance Questionnaire.  Section I is to be submitted to the Government in the Volume II submission.   The same Past Performance Questionnaire is to be utilized by the Offeror and subcontractor/team members.  The Past Performance Questionnaire is currently located at the end of Section L.  In the final RFP the Past Performance Questionnaire will be a separate word document for ease of locating by Offerors.  Subcontractors/team members past performance requirements will be the same as that of the prime Offeror.   For more information please refer to Answer D78.

Question D90:  Paragraph L.13.V – VOLUME III: COST PROPOSAL refers to a “Volume IV in the first paragraph, first sentence.  Is it correct to assume that this citation should read “Volume III”?

Answer D90:  Yes, it should be Volume III. See answer to question D9.

Question D91a:  Attachment L-2 refers to IDIQ Templates (JIMMS IDIQ Pricing Model-1.xls).
Are we correct to assume that this file is “106338-DRAFT-001-071.xls”?

Answer D91a:  106338-DRAFT-001-071.xls is the correct reference for the JIMMS IDIQ Pricing Model-1.xls in the NAIS system.  Please note that the file reference will change when the final RFP is released.

Question D91b:  106338-DRAFT-001-071.xls, tab “PIT” – The sample data shows cost as the SUM (emphasis added) of Hours + rate.  We assume that the formula should be the Product of (Hours * Rate)?  Is this correct?

Answer D91b:  Yes, it should be a product.  This change will be reflected in the final RFP.
 
Question D92:  L.13.IV Volume II: Past Performance Proposal:
A. Past Performance
Prime contractor is asked to cite 5 contracts within the last 5 years with relevant past performance.  Each subcontractor/team member is asked to cite 5 contracts within the last 3 years with relevant past performance.

 
On the Attachment L-4 Past Performance Questionnaire - PP Form 1, the directions state that only performance in the past 3 years is relevant.  Should the Prime contractor provide past performance for 3 or 5 years, and if for 5 years, should PP Form 1 for the prime contractor cite 5 years instead of 3 years?
 
 Answer D92: Please refer to Answer D78.

Question D93:  Please clarify the contents of the Past Performance Proposal.  L.13.IV Volume II, Past Performance Proposal, A. Past Performance states:
“The Past Performance Questionnaires shall be submitted separately from the Past Performance Volume II, to the SEB no later than 11:00 am local time November 17, 2003 in accordance with the Return Information at the end of the questionnaire.”
 
Is the separate submission of the Past Performance Questionnaires coming from the customers directly to the JIMMS Contracting Officer, due on December 8, 2003 as stated in the Attachment L-4, PP Form 1, or is the separate submission simply an appendix in the Volume II, Past Performance?

 

Answer D93: Please refer to Answer D1 for current past performance due dates.

 
Question D94:  Since this procurement is defined as “best value”, does the government anticipate an Oral “discussion” prior to award, and if so, who will the government require to be the attendees at this “discussion” from the submitting organizations?
Answer D94:  It is intended that Oral Discussions will be required with all Offerors in the competitive range.  At a minimum, the Government anticipates that all key personnel will be active and participate.  Additional instructions will be provided with the competitive range letters. 

Question D95:  Request JIMMS proposal due date be extended from 12/1/03 until after 1/1/04. The JIMMS contract will be large, comprehensive and complex.  The draft RFP was only released on 10/6/03, followed by a pre-proposal conference 10/14/03, wherein it was stated that the final RFP will change from the draft and will be release 10/31/03.  Allowing only one month from RFP until proposals are due is not sufficient to prepare a quality and complete response, unless you are a major incumbent.

Answer D95:  Volume II - Past Performance and the Past Performance Questionnaires will be due December 8, 2003 and the remaining Volumes will be due January 7, 2004.  These changes will be reflected in the final RFP. 

Question D96:  We wish to comment on the proposed schedule for delivery of the JIMMS proposal. We believe that the schedule as originally published in the DRFP – let alone the schedule under the accelerated RFP release date announced in Modification 4 – will actually result in increased confusion and errors in submission by Offerors, a more complex review process for the government (with much greater potential for having to grant lengthy extensions later in the proposal process), and ultimately, poorer quality in the offers received, leading to less customer satisfaction during subsequent contract performance. Therefore, we respectfully request that the government consider extending the due dates for proposal and past performance submittal by a substantial margin before the final RFP is released.

Despite differences in work scope, the previous IOSS procurement had many of the same proposal production requirements expected for JIMMS. After numerous extensions, the government ultimately required past performance submittal 46 days after the RFP release. Similarly, the government changed the submittal requirements for the remaining proposal volumes (Technical, etc.) from 46 days to 69 days. Still, even those proposals judged to be in the competitive range subsequently required a lengthy clarification process that was both expensive and time consuming for both the Offerors and the government.

Our records also show that JSC procurements during the past year have tended to allow a median time for proposals of comparable production complexity to JIMMS that is more than twice the time allowed for JIMMS between DRFP release and proposal due date. We do not understand why JIMMS is being given so short a period of time to produce quality in the initial responses if the government wishes to avoid a repeat of the lengthy and costly review process incurred for IOSS.

We recognize and greatly appreciate the steps the government has already taken to keep industry fully informed of its thinking and requirements as they evolved over the past year. However, while early publication of such information is greatly helpful to small businesses in allowing us to conceptualize many aspects of our approaches to upcoming procurements, it has limited utility in helping small businesses shorten the time between the date the final RFP is issued and the time to actually produce a proposal of this complexity. 

The government has repeatedly stressed that the final RFP may be substantially changed from the DRFP in response to comments from industry. Thus, even today, work undertaken by small businesses to prepare this proposal may need substantial revision.  Without the overhead and cash flow of large companies, a small business with limited bid resources should not be asked to accept the risk of substantial bid expenses in final design, writing, or production activities while that uncertainly about requirements remains – and it is precisely those detailed activities that consume the bulk of calendar time in proposal preparation.  Indeed, the government recognized the lack of prudent business management in proceeding by specifically warning responders that we would be proceeding at our own risk if we relied on the DRFP contents when it included language in Modification 3 (October 6) that “the DRAFT RFP is not a solicitation and NASA is not requesting proposals at this time”.  

In making these comments, we again wish to stress our desire to offer NASA a proposal fully worthy of the time and cost NASA will occur in its review. Our reputation with NASA for producing quality proposals and delivering quality performance on contracts is an asset we consider vital to our business. 
Answer D96:  Please refer to Answer D95.

Question 97:  Section L (page 29 of 52) states: "The Management Plan shall be provided here in Volume I, Part 3, Plans and Other Data, per DRD-01 and shall support the material presented in response to Requirements Management Approach in Volume 1, Part 1."  Section 8 of DRD-01, Preparation Information, provides an outline for the Management Plan (item A) as well as additional information (e.g., Configuration Management Plan (item B), Configuration Information Systems (item C), etc.).  Please confirm that the Management Plan requested in Section L refers only to item A in DRD-01 and the balance of DRD-01 will be submitted 30 days following Phase-in (in accordance with the first submission date provided in DRL-01).

Answer 97:  The discussion in Section L should respond to your management approach, this discussion may include aspects of the Management Plan, DRD-01.  To clarify this the final RFP will remove the Reference to DRD-01 in Section L, as it is not a deliverable with the proposal.  The Management Plan, DRD-01, is to be provided 30 days after contract start.

Question 98:  Section L, Table L.13.1 (page 12 of 52), provides page limits for each proposal volume.  Volume I, Part 3, Staffing Plan is not included in the table.  Given that the Staffing Plan includes job descriptions and qualifications for 76 Contract Labor Categories (CLC), please confirm that the Staffing Plan is not included in the total page limit for Volume I.


Answer 98:  See Answer D6.


Question 99:  Section L, Table L.13.1 (page 12 of 52), provides page limits for each proposal volume and guidelines for major sections within each volume.  Volume I, Part 1 provides page guidelines for Technical Approach and Response to Scenarios.  There are no guidelines or limits provided for the other major sections within Volume I, Part 1 (i.e., Management Approach, Staffing/Key Personnel Approach and Safety and Health Approach).  Please confirm the inclusion of these major sections in the total volume page limit and address the Government's page guidelines associated with these major sections.


Answer 99:  See Answer D5.


Question 100:  There are numerous references throughout the instructions for the Mission Suitability Volume in Section L to the Work Breakdown Structure (WBS).  Please confirm that the Government has defined the WBS within the Statement of Work and Offeror's are to use the Government's WBS in their discussion of organization and management roles and responsibilities (vice Offeror's creating their own WBS).  If this is not the case, please eliminate references by the Government to the WBS specific to the SOW and include explicit instructions for an Offeror-provided WBS within Sections L and M.

Answer 100:  Offerors are to utilize the Government defined WBS in their discussion of organization and management roles and responsibilities.  
Question 101:  Table L-1 has the labor category title "Quality Control/Safety Specialist;" however, it's called "Quality Control Specialist" in J-12. Please clarify which title is correct.

Answer 101:  The reference to Quality Control/Safety Specialist in Table L-1 was in error.  Table L-1 should have shown Quality Control/Safety Manager.  Table L-1 will be updated the final RFP to reflect “Quality Control/Safety Manager”.

Question 102:  Table L-1 has the labor category title "Graphics Design Specialist, Sr;" however, it's called "Graphics Design Specialist/Illustrator, Sr" in J-12. Please clarify which title is correct.

Answer 102:  Table L-1 will be updated to reflect the labor category title “Graphics Design Specialist/Illustrator, Sr” in the final RFP.

Question 103:  Table L-1 has a "Clerk" position; however, there's no listing in J-12.
Answer 103:  Table L-1 and Attachment J-12 in the draft RFP both contain the “Clerk” position.  No change is necessary to the final RFP

Question 104:  Table L-1, "Librarian Technician" should read "Library Technician."
Answer 104:  Table L-1 will be modified in the final RFP to change “Librarian Technician” to read Library Technician.

Question 105a:  Table L-1, "Drafter I" is shown as requiring an AA in a related technical field, but "Drafter II" requires a BS in a technical field. This appears to be inconsistent because the only difference between the two is more experience required for the Drafter II. Also note that there is an inconsistency between Table L-1 and Attach J-12 in that for "Drafter II," a BS is required; however, in Attach J-12, only an Associates Degree is required. Please clarify which is required. This is especially significant when determining which positions are exempt and which are not. Based on the solicitation requirements as they stand right now, the Drafter I would be non-exempt, and the Drafter II would be exempt (if Table L-1 is correct in requiring a BS), which is also inconsistent. It is recommended that the Drafter II be moved into the same block with Drafter I and that Attachment J-12 be corrected to require only an Associates Degree, making both positions non-exempt. 

Answer 105a:  Drafter II was mapped to the wrong Standard Labor Category, however, Drafter II requires an AA plus additional experience over that of a Drafter I.  Table L-1 will be updated in the final RFP to move the Drafter II Contract Labor Category into the Engineering Technician 3 Standard Labor Category.  The Standard Labor Category classification will be updated in the final RFP to reflect an Associates Degree and a minimum of 4 years of experience.

Question 105b:  The same situation as described above exists between the "Video Technician I" and "Video Technician II." It is recommended that the "II" be moved into the same block as the "I" requiring only an AA.
Answer 105b:  The Contract Labor Category “Video Technician II” was incorrectly mapped in Table L-1.  Video Technician II will be moved to the Visual Media Specialist 2 Standard Labor Category in the final RFP to accurately reflect the education and experience guidelines.

Question 106:  In Section L, there appears to be some confusion regarding the due date for past performance information. Paragraph L-7 states that the Past Performance Proposal (incidentally, it's incorrectly referred to as Volume III — it should be Volume II) and Past Performance Questionnaires are due 17 November 2003; and paragraph L.13.IV.A (third paragraph) states that the Past Performance Questionnaires are due 17 November 2003 (assuming these are the questionnaires to be completed by the contract customer). However, the sample letter included on the first page of Attachment L-4 contains instructions to the contract customer that the questionnaires are due by 8 December 2003. 

Which date is correct? Please advise.
Answer 106:  The Past Performance Section of the RFP has been rewritten to clarify requirements based upon questions received.   The incorrect reference to Volume III and the inconsistency in dates are corrected in the final RFP.
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